

WOKINGHAM SACRE CONSTITUTION

DOCUMENT CONTROL INFORMATION

Title: Wokingham SACRE Constitution

[Document/Policy Number:]

Date: June 2025

Review date: June 2029

CONTENTS

1.	What is SACRE?	3
2.	Membership	3
3.	Recruitment	5
4.	Term of office	6
5.	Co-opted members	7
6.	Meetings	7
7.	Agendas and papers	8
8.	Minutes	9
9.	Availability of papers to the public	9
10.	Voting	9
11.	Chair and Vice-Chair	10
12.	Sub-Committees	11
13.	Constitution	11
14.	Costs	11
15.	Agreed Syllabus Conference	
16.	Requests for determinations	
17.	Annual Report and communication with schools	14
18.	Code of Conduct	
19.	Complaints procedure	17
20.	Freedom of Information requests	17
Δnn4	endix 1 – Roles and Duties	15
, ,,	STORE TOTAL DUCCES	C
Appe	endix 2 – Standing Agenda Items	21

1. WHAT IS SACRE?

- 1.1. SACRE stands for Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education. Every upper tier Local Authority area must have a SACRE. It is the responsibility of the Local Authority to convene and support a SACRE. This is set out in Section 390-397 of the Education Act 1996 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/56/section/390
- 1.2. The purpose of a SACRE is to provide advice to the Local Authority in relation to Religious Education ("RE"), and the statutory requirements to provide a daily act of religious worship. Religious Education is the only subject in the basic curriculum that is not statutorily prescribed by the Department for Education, although it is a statutory element of the curriculum. It remains a local responsibility to set a syllabus for local schools. The rationale for this is that it is important that Religious Education reflect the views and perspectives within a locality of people of all beliefs and none. The legislation requires that every SACRE reflect the demography of the local area for this reason.
- 1.3. As set out in section 391 of the Education Act 1996, the functions of a SACRE are to:
 - advise the Local Authority on matters that the Local Authority sees fit to refer, where these relate to:
 - a. religious worship in community schools or in foundation schools which (within the meaning of Part II of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998) do not have a religious character, and
 - b. religious education to be given in accordance with an agreed syllabus including methods of teaching, the choice of materials and the provision of training for teachers.
 - compile and submit an annual report
 - decide whether the Local Authority's agreed syllabus for RE needs to be reviewed, and require that the local authority does so
 - ensure the locally agreed syllabus is reviewed every five years, with an Agreed Syllabus Conference ("ASC").

SACREs must also consider and make a 'determination' on any application that the requirement for Christian collective worship should not apply to a particular school or class, or description of pupils within that school.

2. MEMBERSHIP

- 2.1. The basis for the membership of any SACRE is set out in the 1996 Education Act Section 390(4). The members of the SACRE shall be appointed by Wokingham Borough Council ("the Local Authority").
- 2.2. In accordance with Section 390(6) and paragraph 4(4) of Schedule 31 of the 1996 Education Act, the Local Authority will ensure that the composition of Group A on a SACRE, and Committee A on an ASC, is so far as it is consistent with the efficient discharge of the SACRE's functions broadly representative of the proportionate strengths of the denominations and religions in the area.

2.3. SACRE members shall form the following four "Representative Groups":

<u>Group A)</u> such Christian denominations other than the Church of England, and other religions and denominations of such religions that in the opinion of the Local Authority will appropriately reflect the principal denominations in the area.

4 members, representing denominations such as:

Free Churches

Roman Catholic Church

Baptist Church

Salvation Army

Methodist Church

Greek Orthodox Church

United Reformed Church

Evangelical Church

Religions and worldviews other than Christianity (1 member from each):

Hinduism

Islam

Judaism

Sikhism

Buddhism

Humanism

Group B) The Church of England – 3 members

Group C) Teachers, Teaching Unions and Educationalists (representing both Primary and Secondary education) - 6 members

<u>Group D)</u> The Local Authority – 2 members (elected councillors representing different political parties)

Co-opted members

Any other co-opted members agreed by SACRE (non-voting)

Local Authority support

The Local Authority will provide the following support for the operation of SACRE:

Local Authority Link Officer

Clerk to SACRE

RE Advisor

2.4 Members of SACRE represent particular communities or interest groups and are accountable to a nominating body. Members of SACRE should represent the views of their nominating group in the work of the SACRE. They should act as channels through which information passes between their nominating group / sponsoring body and the

SACRE, bringing the confidence of their faith / belief / professional group/ local community that they can represent them appropriately.

3. RECRUITMENT

- 3.1 The Local Authority must appoint named persons to each of the four Representative Groups.
- 3.2 When there is a vacancy within a Representative Group, the Clerk will generally approach an organisation, explaining the work of the SACRE, and the required commitment, and ask the organisation to provide a nomination. In some cases, individuals may be invited to join the SACRE, or express interest in joining; they will be asked to identify an appropriate organisation to be their nominating body, and to provide a nomination. Individuals cannot be nominated by a family member, partner or friend.
- 3.3 The Clerk will maintain a record of each member's nominating body, and the contact details of the individual who nominated the member, and will periodically check that the contact information is up to date.
- 3.4 Upon receiving a nomination, the Clerk will welcome the new member to the SACRE in writing and provide details of the next meeting. New members will be provided with the SACRE's constitution, latest annual report, and NASACRE's handbook for SACRE members, as well as details of upcoming training available to new SACRE members provided by NASACRE. They will be asked to sign the Code of Conduct within this constitution to confirm that they agree to act in accordance with it.
- 3.5 In accordance with Section 392(2) of the 1996 Education Act, before appointing a person to represent any religion, denomination, association or organisation as a member of the SACRE, the Local Authority shall take all reasonable steps to assure themselves that he or she is representative of the religion, denomination, association or organisation they are being appointed to represent. The Local Authority will seek assurance that nominating bodies are reputable organisations which act in accordance with the Code of Conduct within this constitution and provide a support network for the member. All appointments to the SACRE and ASC will be made on the basis of nomination by a suitable, reputable organisation.
- 3.6 In the case of Group C (Teachers, Teaching Unions and Educationalists), nominations will be sought via the Wokingham Secondary Federation, the Wokingham Primary Headteacher Association, teaching unions, and other educational organisations.
- 3.7 The Chair or Vice-Chair will aim to arrange a meeting with new members before they attend their first SACRE meeting. For new faith representative members who are not school teachers, a teacher member of Group C will be asked if the new member could visit their school to observe an RE lesson and Collective Worship.
- 3.8 SACRE members may suggest people or organisations who they feel would be a positive addition to the SACRE. Members may be consulted by the Local Authority regarding the

appointment of members and amendments to the membership structure, but the legal responsibility for appointing SACRE members and determining the make-up of the SACRE lies with the Local Authority.

4. TERM OF OFFICE

- 4.1. Members of Representative Groups are expected to serve from the date of their appointment for 4 years, at which point they are eligible to be re-appointed. In order to be re-appointed, a re-nomination will need to be received from the member's nominating body. Members of Representative Group D (Local Authority) may often serve shorter terms, depending on their re-election to office, or the re-allocation of their areas of responsibility by the Local Authority.
- 4.2. Members may resign from the SACRE at any time by contacting the Clerk, who will inform the Chair, Vice-Chair and Local Authority link officer.
- 4.3. The Local Authority will withdraw a person from membership of the SACRE if, in their opinion, he or she ceases to be representative of the religion, denomination, organisation or association which they were appointed to represent (in accordance with section 392(3) of the 1996 Education Act).
- 4.4. Where a member of a Representative Group fails to attend 3 consecutive meetings of the SACRE, they shall cease to be a member of the SACRE, and their nominating body shall be invited to nominate another representative provided that:
 - the Clerk to the SACRE has advised the member in writing of the provision of this clause following the second missed meeting and at least 10 working days before the third meeting and
 - b) the SACRE does not decide to disapply this rule for reasons of extenuating circumstances.
- 4.5 Where the atmosphere of a SACRE or ASC has become vexatious, it cannot carry out the functions it was appointed to do, namely give advice to the Local Authority and its schools on RE and collective worship or the review of a syllabus. The Local Authority and not the SACRE or ASC is the appropriate body to deal with such situations. The Local Authority will remove membership from a person who it feels is not making a positive contribution to the SACRE's work or who fails to adhere to the SACRE's Code of Conduct, as set out in clause 18 below. In such a case, the Local Authority would generally contact the nominating body to mediate between the member and the Local Authority to ensure that the behaviour of the SACRE member is appropriate.
- 4.6 On resignation or removal by the Local Authority, an appointed person shall be replaced by the Local Authority.

5. CO-OPTED MEMBERS

- 5.1 The SACRE may appoint people through co-option to aid in its work and/or for specific time-limited projects.
- 5.2 Any member of SACRE may propose someone for co-option if that person will represent a view or perspective not already represented on SACRE.
- 5.3 A member may be co-opted without a formal vote being taken on this, if no member objects to their co-option.
- 5.4 Co-opted members are not members of any of the four Representative Groups on the SACRE.
- 5.5 Co-opted members:
 - shall have the right to speak at meetings but not to vote
 - will generally join the SACRE for a year, but may join for a shorter period at the discretion of the SACRE.

6. MEETINGS

- 6.1 At least 7 clear days before each meeting of the SACRE the Clerk shall send notices to every member setting out the business to be transacted.
- 6.2 At least 3 clear days before each SACRE or ASC meeting (or at the time it is convened if the meeting is convened at shorter notice), the Local Authority shall give public notice of the time and place of such meeting by posting it on its website in accordance with regulation 4 of The Religious Education (Meetings of Local Conferences and Councils) Regulations 1994 ("the 1994 Regulations").
- 6.3 The SACRE shall regulate its own proceedings and may establish committees for specified purposes. Such committees may include persons who are not themselves members of the SACRE.
- 6.4 Each of the Representative Groups of the SACRE may hold its own meetings and shall make their own arrangements to appoint a Chair for such meetings.
- 6.5 The SACRE shall generally meet three times per year. Dates of meetings will generally be shared with SACRE members at least 6 months in advance. When setting meeting dates, the Clerk will consult a calendar of religious festivals in order to avoid the dates of religious festivals or holy days which may prevent SACRE members from being able to attend a meeting. Members should notify the clerk when dates are shared, any reasons for reconsidering a suggested meeting date.
- 6.6 In the event that an additional meeting is required, members will be notified of the date of this as early as possible, and at least two months in advance of the meeting date. The

- process for the meeting agenda and papers will follow the procedures set out in clause 7 of this Constitution.
- 6.7 The Assistant Director-Education and SEND or his/her representative(s) shall be entitled to attend all meetings of the SACRE and of any committees it may establish and to speak but not to vote.
- 6.8 All meetings of the SACRE and any sub-committee of the SACRE including the four Representative Groups which constitute the SACRE shall be open to the public in accordance with regulation 3(1) of the 1994 Regulations, except if clause 6.9 applies.
- 6.9 The public may be excluded from any meeting or any part of a meeting during an item of business that is likely to 'be ... in breach of the obligation of confidence' (as stated in Paragraph 4(2) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012) and/or confidential information would be disclosed as defined in regulation 9 of the Religious Education (Meetings of Local Conferences and Councils) Regulations 1994.
- 6.10 If clause 6.9 applies, the Chair will declare that the meeting will go into 'Part 2'. This signifies that the discussion will be confidential to SACRE members, and that that part of the meeting will not be live streamed. Any members of the public who have attended the meeting will be asked to leave for this item. Minutes of 'Part 2' discussions will only be circulated to SACRE members and not made public.
- 6.11 If there is an unresolvable issue at the meeting of SACRE or an ASC, or one that would bring the SACRE, ASC or the Local Authority into disrepute, the Chair will close the discussion. The SACRE or ASC shall have the power to exclude any person from a public meeting, including members of the public and/or representatives of news media, for the purpose of suppressing or preventing disorderly conduct or other misbehaviour, in accordance with regulation 3(2) of the 1994 Regulations.
- 6.12 The validity of the proceedings of the SACRE, or of any of its Representative Groups, shall not be affected by a vacancy in the membership or on the ground that a member does not at the time represent the denomination, religion or association they were appointed to represent.
- 6.13 In-person SACRE meetings can be hybrid and allow for virtual attendance, at the Chair's discretion. In these cases, members will be provided with a link to join the meeting virtually. At hybrid meetings, virtual attendees are considered 'present' at the meeting in the same way as those attending in person, and are subject to the regulations in this constitution. Members will be asked to attend in person if they are able to, to support effective discussion.

7. AGENDAS AND PAPERS

7.1 The agenda for each meeting shall be determined by the Chair, Local Authority link officer, RE Advisor, and the Clerk to SACRE.

- 7.2 Members may submit requests for agenda items to the Clerk for consideration at least 14 days before a meeting.
- 7.3 The agenda and any papers for review will be circulated to SACRE members as well as published on the Wokingham Borough Council website at least one week before the meeting.
- 7.4 For standing agenda items see appendix 2.

8. MINUTES

- 8.1 The clerk will agree draft minutes of each meeting with the Chair, RE advisor and LA link officer.
- 8.2 Draft minutes of each meeting will be sent to members no later than three weeks after each meeting.
- 8.3 The minutes shall be confirmed at the next meeting.
- 8.4 The Clerk shall publish minutes of SACRE meetings on the Wokingham Borough Council website.

9. AVAILABILITY OF PAPERS TO THE PUBLIC

9.1 All papers of the SACRE shall be available to the public except in relation to any information defined as confidential as set out in clause 6.9, and defined in Regulation 9(3) of the 1994 Regulations and The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

10.VOTING

- 10.1 In the interests of achieving consensus through discussion (except as provided in clause 11.2 below for the election of the Chair and Vice-Chair), SACRE should only take a vote from the four Representative Groups when it is necessary to make a formal record of the position of SACRE, or if there are opposing views. Following a vote, SACRE can record a position on a matter on which it is advising the Local Authority.
- 10.2 For the SACRE to be quorate, at least one member of each Representative Group should be present (in accordance with the Education Act 1996).
- 10.3 On any question or matter on which the SACRE is formally advising the Local Authority, only the Representative Groups on the SACRE shall be entitled to vote, and each Representative Group shall have a single vote (as set out in Section 390(7) of the Education Act 1996).

- 10.4 A proposal shall be deemed to be carried if it is approved by at least three of the four Representative Groups.
- 10.5 In the event of a tied vote, the Chair shall have the casting vote. Alternatively, the Chair may decide to declare a non-decision vote.
- 10.6 Decisions within a Representative Group about how the Representative Group will vote do not require unanimity. In accordance with Section 392(7) of the 1996 Education Act, each Representative Group may decide how to regulate its own proceedings, including provision for resolving deadlock. Unless a Representative Group determines its own method of deciding on its vote, and of how to resolve a tied vote, the default process shall be that the vote of each Representative Group will be decided by a majority of votes within the Representative Group. A tied vote within a Representative Group will be recorded as an abstention by that Representative Group.
- 10.7 Only Representative Group members present in the meeting may vote. Members who join a hybrid meeting virtually will be considered to be present and may participate in voting. In-person attendance will be encouraged, to enable members to discuss with their Representative Group prior to a formal vote being taken.
- 10.8 When votes are to be taken, Representative Groups will have the opportunity to discuss the matter at the meeting prior to voting.
- 10.9 When it is anticipated that meetings will involve a vote, whether formal or informal, the matter will be included as an item in the published agenda, and members notified in advance that a vote will be taking place.
- 10.10 See clauses 15.12-15.18 below regarding voting as an Agreed Syllabus Conference.

11 CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR

- 11.1 The SACRE shall elect annually at its first meeting in the academic year (or any meeting during the year when the position is vacant) a Chairperson and a Vice Chairperson from among its members.
- 11.2 Members will be asked to nominate and 'second' members to stand for the roles of Chair and Vice-Chair. A vote will then be taken on the basis of one vote per member. The Chair and Vice-Chair will be appointed for a period of one year, after which time an election will be held among the membership. Chairs and Vice-chairs may serve for repeated terms if they are re-elected.
- 11.3 Where it is not practicable or possible for some reason to elect a Chair or Vice-Chair, the Local Authority may appoint a Chair and/or Vice-Chair for a period of time, under its duty as the appointing body (according to section 390 of the 1996 Education Act), until it is possible for such roles to be elected in accordance with clauses 11.1 and 11.2 above.

11.4 The Chair, Vice-Chair, RE advisor and Local Authority link officer will constitute this SACRE's executive group, and will communicate regularly.

12 SUB-COMMITTEES

- 12.1 The SACRE may constitute sub-committees to deal with particular matters as and when it sees fit. At least 7 clear days' notice of meetings of any such sub-committees should be given to members.
- 12.2 Sub-committees cannot make decisions which are binding on the SACRE.

13 CONSTITUTION

- 13.1 The Local Authority has a legal duty to comply with the relevant legislation. A SACRE's constitution is broadly determined by the 1996 Education Act and The Religious Education (Meetings of Local Conferences and Councils) Regulations 1994.
- 13.2 This SACRE's constitution is devised by the Local Authority, in partnership with its legal services, in consultation with the SACRE.
- 13.3 In accordance with the 2022 NASACRE SACRE Constitution guidance, this SACRE Constitution will be reviewed every 4 years, or earlier if there is a change in legislation or of the religious demographics of the area. The Local Authority may change the Constitution at any time, but it shall consult with the SACRE to approve the changes before doing so. The Local Authority will not be obliged to obtain the SACRE's approval where the changes are mundane, such as the removal of reference to bodies that no longer exist.
- 13.4 After consultation with members regarding changes to the Constitution, the revised document will be formally approved and adopted via the Local Authority's executive committee.

14 COSTS

- 14.1 The costs of operating the SACRE shall be met by the Local Authority, with a budget identified on an annual basis. This will include the cost of providing an RE advisor.
- 14.2 In addition, the Local Authority will provide the services of a Clerk to the SACRE, and a Local Authority link officer.

15 AGREED SYLLABUS CONFERENCE

15.1 An Agreed Syllabus Conference ("ASC") is a legislative requirement under <u>Schedule 31 of</u> the Education Act 1996.

- 15.2 The Agreed Syllabus will be reviewed at least every 5 years in line with Paragraph 2 of Schedule 31 of the 1996 Education Act, and a Conference for this purpose shall be convened every five years.
- 15.3 The Representative Groups on the SACRE, other than the group representing the Local Authority, may at any time require a review of any Agreed Syllabus that is currently adopted by the Local Authority, in accordance with section 391(3) of the 1996 Education Act. In accordance with section 391(4) of the 1996 Education Act, each Representative Group shall have a single vote on the question of whether to require a review of the Agreed Syllabus.
- 15.4 Paragraphs 4(1) and 4(2) of Schedule 31 of the 1996 Education Act provides that the membership of the ASC will be appointed by the Local Authority according to the same four-group structure as the SACRE. The four groups on an ASC are referred to as "committees" rather than Representative Groups.
- 15.5 As on the SACRE, the number of persons appointed to represent each denomination or religion required to be represented shall so far as is consistent with the efficient discharge of the Committee's functions reflect broadly the proportionate strength of that denomination or religion in the area in accordance with paragraph 4(4) of Schedule 31 of the 1996 Education Act.
- 15.6 As when appointing members to a Representative Group on the SACRE, before appointing a person to represent any religion, denomination or associations as a member of a Committee on an ASC, the Local Authority shall take all reasonable steps to assure themselves that they are representative of the religion, denomination or associations in question, in accordance with paragraph 7(1) of Schedule 31 of the 1996 Education Act.
- 15.7 Paragraph 7(2) of Schedule 31 (Agreed Syllabuses of RE) of the 1996 Education Act provides that no proceedings under that schedule shall be invalidated on the ground that a member of a Committee did not represent the religion, denomination or associations which they were appointed to represent, unless it is shown that the Local Authority failed to take the steps required by paragraph 7(1)/ clause 15.6 above.
- 15.8 In accordance with paragraph 8 of Schedule 31 of the 1996 Education Act, a person appointed as a member of a Committee:
 - may resign their membership; or
 - may be withdrawn from membership by the Local Authority if, in their opinion, they cease to be representative of the religion, denomination or associations which they were appointed to represent.
- 15.9 On resignation or withdrawal by the Local Authority, an appointed person shall be replaced by the Local Authority, in accordance with Paragraph 9 of Schedule 31 of the 1996 Education Act.

- 15.10 Any sub-committees appointed by the ASC shall each include at least one member of each of the Committees constituting the ASC, in accordance with paragraph 5 of Schedule 31 of the 1996 Education Act.
- 15.11 Members of the ASC will elect a Chairperson of the ASC by voting on the basis of one vote per member.
- 15.12 For the ASC to be quorate, at least one member of each of the four Committees should be present.
- 15.13 Paragraph 6 of Schedule 31 of the 1996 Education Act provides that on any question to be decided by the ASC or by any sub-committee of the ASC, a single vote shall be given for each of the Committees constituting the ASC.
- 15.14 When Committees of the ASC are deciding how to vote, this shall be done as described in clause 10.6 above, in the same way as for Representative Groups on the SACRE.
- 15.15 In line with the Wokingham Borough Council constitution, only Committee members present in the meeting may vote.
- 15.16 Members joining a hybrid meeting virtually may participate in voting. In-person attendance will be encouraged, to enable members to discuss with their Committee prior to a formal vote being taken.
- 15.17 All four Committees of the ASC must vote unanimously for a syllabus before it can be adopted, as set out in <u>Schedule 31 of the Education Act 1996</u>.
- 15.18 If one of the Committees has a tied vote within its members and after further discussion cannot decide how to vote, it shall be deemed that the Committee has abstained from voting. This will mean that a unanimous recommendation of the ASC cannot be reached and clause 15.20 of this Constitution shall apply.
- 15.19 Once a syllabus is unanimously approved by the ASC, it will be formally approved and adopted via the Local Authority's executive committee.
- 15.20 Where the unanimous recommendation of the ASC cannot be reached on the adoption of a syllabus, the Local Authority may report this to the Secretary of State who will take over the process as set out in paragraph 12 of Schedule 31 of the 1996 Education Act.

16 REQUESTS FOR DETERMINATIONS

- 16.1 In accordance with section 394(1) of the 1996 Education Act, the SACRE shall, on an application made by a head-teacher of:
 - a) any community school or
 - b) foundation school which has not been designated under section 69(3) of the 1998 School Standards and Framework Act as having a religious character)

consider whether it is appropriate for the requirement for Christian collective worship (imposed by paragraph 3(2) of Schedule 20 to the 1998 School Standards and Framework Act) to apply in the case of that school, or in the case of any class or description of pupils at that school.

- 16.2 In determining whether it is appropriate for the requirement for Christian collective worship to apply as referred to in 16.1, the SACRE shall have regard to any circumstances relating to the family backgrounds of the pupils at the school, or of the pupils of the particular class or description in question, which are relevant for determining the character of the collective worship appropriate in their case, in accordance with section 394(2) of the 1996 Education Act.
- 16.3 In accordance with section 394(3) of the 1996 Education Act, the SACRE shall give the headteacher written notification of their decision on the application.
- 16.4 In accordance with section 395(1) of the 1996 Education Act, any determination by a SACRE under section 394 shall be reviewed by the SACRE:
 - a) at any time on an application made by the head teacher, and
 - b) in any event not later than the end of the period of five years beginning with the date on which the determination first took effect or (where it has since been reviewed under this section) with the effective date of the decision on the last review.

17. ANNUAL REPORT AND COMMUNICATION WITH SCHOOLS

- 17.1 In accordance with section 391(6) of the 1996 Education Act, the SACRE shall each year publish a report on its proceedings and those of its Representative Groups ("the SACRE Annual Report"). This report shall specify any matters on which the SACRE has given advice to the Local Authority and the reasons for offering the advice.
- 17.2 The SACRE Annual Report will be sent via email to elected members, the Director of Children's Services and Assistant Director-Education and SEND, RE teachers, SACRE members, NASACRE and the DfE. It will also be shared with headteachers via the Education Newsletter and published on the Wokingham Schools Hub website.
- 17.3 The SACRE communicates regularly with schools via RE Network Meetings, the Wokingham Schools Hub website and the weekly Education News bulletin, as well as via email with RE teachers.

18. CODE OF CONDUCT

18.1 As voting members of a Local Authority committee, SACRE and ASC members are subject to Wokingham Borough Council's Code of Conduct for Councillors (Chapter 9.2 of the Wokingham Borough Council constitution). This includes the expectation that committee members will uphold The Seven Principles of Public Life - GOV.UK (the 'Nolan Principles').

An effective SACRE and ASC is a model of social cohesion in which every member is heard

and respected, even when there are many different positions or opinions on the issues under discussion.

Wokingham SACRE expects all its members (when operating as members of the SACRE or of an ASC) to:

- attend all SACRE meetings and take a full and active part in its work.
- participate in and review the work of SACRE for the benefit of the whole community.
- listen with respect to the views of other members and where a situation of disagreement occurs, disagree respectfully.
 (As set out in the WBC Code, respect means politeness and courtesy in behaviour, speech, and in the written word. Debate and having different views are all part of a healthy democracy. Members can challenge, criticise and disagree with views, ideas, opinions, and policies in a robust but civil manner. They should not, however, subject individuals, groups of people or organisations to personal attack.)
- express views and opinions openly, honestly and sensitively, always recognising others may have views different from one's own.
- assume at all times that other members of SACRE are honourable and concerned with the best interests of SACRE.
- seek reasoned consensus where views diverge and never disrespect the views of other SACRE members or seek to convert them to a different belief stance.
- actively consult with and report back to the body which they represent so that debate is fully informed.
- actively challenge and resist stereotyping.
- accord any and all religion and worldviews represented on the SACRE the same respect.
- ensure they do not bully, harass or discriminate against any person, group of people or organisation.
- withhold any views inconsistent with equality and human rights and accept the presence of views they find challenging, where not to do so would compromise the rights of others.
- take a dispassionate view of religion as a field of study, mindful that religious education involves developing pupils' knowledge and understanding of religion and worldviews, rather than nurturing religious faith.
- show respect in their communication with Local Authority employees, and employees of partner organisations, being respectful of the employees' role and professional integrity.
- act in a dignified and professional manner, as befits their role as members of a Wokingham Borough Council committee, and as representatives of their nominating body.
- 18.2 Members of SACRE and of an ASC must feel they form part of an environment where challenge is welcomed but without any threat (either implied or real), bullying, harassment or discrimination. Should any SACRE or ASC member feel that dialogue has crossed the line from challenge into threat, bullying, harassment or discrimination, they may raise an informal concern with the Local Authority through the Clerk, and this will be addressed with the relevant SACRE member informally by an appropriate Local Authority

officer. If the individual raising the concern is dissatisfied with the action taken, they may make a formal complaint to the Assistant Director-Education and SEND, as set out in 19 below.

- 18.3 The expectations in clause 18.1 apply to members' conduct outside SACRE and ASC meetings as well as within meetings. The Code of Conduct applies to all forms of communication and interaction, including:
 - a) at face-to-face meetings
 - b) at online or telephone meetings
 - c) in written communication
 - d) in verbal communication
 - e) in non-verbal communication
 - f) in electronic and social media communication, posts, statements, and comments.

Members' social media communications, communication in any public forum, and in any written communication, should be respectful and polite, and should not include threatening, offensive, abusive, discriminatory or derogatory language. Social media communications, and any public communications, should be professional in tone, align with the values of the SACRE and of Wokingham Borough Council, and should not bring the Local Authority into disrepute.

When expressing views that relate to the work of the SACRE or ASC on social media, in written communication or in any public forum, SACRE members must make it clear that their views are their own and not those of the SACRE, ASC or Wokingham Borough Council.

Any communications that SACRE members make in a personal capacity through social media or any other public forum must not:

- bring the Local Authority into disrepute, for example by making defamatory comments about individuals or the Council; or posting links to inappropriate content;
- share anything that could be considered discriminatory against, or bullying or harassment of, any individual, for example: making offensive or derogatory comments relating to sex, gender reassignment, race (including nationality), disability, sexual orientation, religion or belief or age.
- 18.4 The Nolan Principles and the Wokingham Borough Council Code of Conduct require that members of Local Authority committees impartially exercise their responsibilities in the interests of the local community, and do not use, or attempt to use, their position improperly to the advantage or disadvantage of themself or anyone else.

On appointment to the SACRE, members must declare any relevant interests they (or their partner) have and should update the Clerk as soon as there is any change to this information. The Clerk will ask members on an annual basis to confirm that the information remains accurate and complete. When a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to a member's declared interest, members must disclose the interest. The

- Chair can use their discretion to decide whether it is appropriate for the member to participate in discussion of the matter, and to vote on it.
- 18.5 Members who would like to raise any matters relating to the SACRE or ASC can contact the LA link officer, Chair, Vice-Chair or Clerk at any time. If a SACRE member wishes to communicate with all other members of the SACRE outside SACRE meetings about any matter, or with the RE advisor, this must be done via the Clerk.
- 18.6 This Code of Conduct applies to SACRE and ASC members as soon as they join the SACRE or ASC and sign their declaration of acceptance of the Code, or attend their first meeting of the SACRE or ASC, and continues to apply until the person ceases to be a SACRE or ASC member.
- 18.7 Members are required to co-operate with any investigation related to a possible breach of the Code of Conduct and comply with any sanction imposed following a finding that the Code has been breached.

19. COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE

- 19.1 Anyone may raise a formal complaint with the Local Authority about the SACRE or ASC as a whole, or about individual members.
- 19.2 A complaint can be submitted on the Local Authority's website at wokingham.gov.uk/contact-us/complaints or sent, via the SACRE Clerk, to the Assistant Director-Education and SEND.
- 19.3 The Local Authority will confirm receipt of the complaint and provide contact details and an estimate of when its reply can be expected.
- 19.4 A formal investigation will be undertaken by a senior Local Authority officer. Where the Code of Conduct set out in clause 18 above is deemed to have been breached, the investigating officer will, if considered appropriate, arrange support and mediation to resolve the matter before taking other action.

20. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION REQUESTS

- 20.1 The Local Authority is subject to the requirements of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 ("FOIA") and the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 ("EIR").
- 20.2 SACRE members shall assist and co-operate with the Local Authority to enable it to comply with information disclosure requirements.
- 20.3 A SACRE member shall:
 - (a) forward any received FOIA request ("Request for Information") to the Local Authority as soon as practicable after receipt and in any event within two working days of receipt;

- (b) provide all necessary assistance as reasonably requested by the Local Authority to enable it to respond to a Request for Information within the time for compliance set out in section 10 of the FOIA or regulation 5 of the EIR.
- 20.4 The Local Authority shall be responsible for determining at its absolute discretion whether information is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the provisions of the FOIA or the EIR; and/or is to be disclosed in response to a Request for Information.
- **20.5** In no event shall the SACRE member respond directly to a Request for Information unless expressly authorised to do so by the Local Authority.

Appendix 1: Roles and Duties

Roles and Duties are not exhaustive lists and are regularly reviewed.

- 1. **Chair** ensure that:
- (i) a clear timetable of meetings for the year is agreed and published.
- (ii) membership of the SACRE is efficiently maintained, i.e. that the four groups of SACRE have appropriate representation, with good attendance and participation.
- (iii) SACRE produces guidance to support the local authority and its schools with regard to religious education and collective worship.
- (iv) an annual report is produced each year and sent to the Secretary of State as required by statute.
- (v) SACRE members have a programme of training, and when necessary induction.
- (vi) there is a Vice or Deputy Chair if the Chair is unable to make a meeting.
- (vii) where there is an agreed code of conduct it is adhered to by all SACRE members.
- 2. Clerk shall:
- (i) Arrange, attend and clerk meetings of the SACRE.
- (ii) Produce and circulate minutes and agendas of the SACRE in a timely manner in accordance with the LA's standard format.
- (iii) Ensure that all papers from working parties or consultants are circulated to SACRE members in advance of meetings electronically and where necessary printed.

- (iv) Advise on dates of meetings, particularly in relation to religious holidays or other Council meetings, which may clash and affect quoracy.
- (v) Arrange venues for meetings of the SACRE / ASC
- (vi) Remind and chase members/other attendees about reports for meetings and circulation deadlines.
- (vii) Circulate additional papers or conference invitations e.g. from government departments, Council departments, the National Association of SACREs (NASACRE), the RE Council and Ofsted as appropriate.
- (viii) Alert the Chair and RE Professional Adviser to any communications from these and similar bodies.
- (ix) Ensure that regular communications such as the NASACRE updates are circulated to members.
- (x) Respond to queries, alerting the Chair and Advisor when necessary, for example FOI requests.
- (xi) Maintain the SACRE membership list, keeping it up to date, chasing members whose attendance is poor and identifying any membership issues for the attention of the Chair, RE Professional Advisor and LA Officers.
- (xii) Assist in the production and circulation of the Annual Report; issue Welcome/Induction Packs for new members and ensure that they have sufficient information to prepare them for their first meeting.
- (xiii) Maintain a filing system of relevant and up to date information.
- (xiv) Ensure that all SACRE publications/advice are circulated to the relevant bodies.
- (xv) Be responsible for the passing on for payment, invoices relating to SACRE work.

3. RE Advisor – shall:

- Attend all SACRE meetings, helping to prepare agendas and key papers.
- (ii) Advise SACRE on issues relating to its work.
- (iii) Ensure SACRE is up to date with local, regional and national initiatives and issues related to RE, collective worship and syllabus developments, e.g. the work of the RE Council, the All Party Parliamentary Group for RE, DfE or charitable funded initiatives.

- (iv) Relate SACRE's work to wider community issues, including partnerships with faith and belief communities.
- (v) Lead on areas related to the Agreed Syllabus, RE and collective worship.
- (vi) Manage and deliver the training of SACRE members and teachers.
- (vii) Produce reports to meet the deadlines agreed for distribution of papers for the meetings.
- (viii) With the SACRE Clerk ensure that all SACRE publications are circulated to the relevant bodies.
- (ix) Working with the Chair, the Clerk and other SACRE Officers, produce reports to the Mayor or Portfolio Holder and Cabinet as required.
- (x) Draft and edit the SACRE Annual Report and all SACRE materials and publications.
- (xi) Take the lead on the monitoring aspects of SACRE.

4. Local Authority Link Officer – shall:

- (i) Attend SACRE meetings to represent the Director of Children's Services and Assistant Director-Education and SEND.
- (ii) Support the SACRE's effective communications with the LA.
- (iii) Provide information about, and link the SACRE to, processes and Council initiatives which may influence or impact on its work.
- (iv) Support the work of the Clerk and RE Advisor.
- (v) Provide the SACRE with information regarding local schools and the successes and difficulties they are experiencing.
- (vi) Provide school examination data and information about which schools have been inspected by Ofsted.
- (vii) Support SACRE's links and communication with schools.
- (viii) Ensure that the needs of SACRE are recognised in the budget provided for the SACRE's work each year and that a sufficient budget is available so that SACRE can perform its statutory duties.
- (ix) Provide a budget update to members at each SACRE meeting.

(x) Ensure that the SACRE and ASC can function effectively, including ensuring that SACRE and ASC members are mindful of their role as representatives on a Local Authority committee and have due regard to the Code of Conduct and complaints procedure within this Constitution, so that the Local Authority is not brought into disrepute.

Appendix 2: SACRE Standing Agenda Items

1. All meetings:

- Welcome and Apologies
- Approval of minutes
- Matters arising
- How are things in Wokingham schools?
- Development Plan and budget
- Feedback from teacher networks and training (including any training provided or teacher feedback regarding the syllabus)
- National updates relating to education and RE, including NASACRE updates
- Feedback from Berkshire SACRE hub meetings (including updates on the syllabus review process, and any subsequent updates related to the syllabus, when applicable)
- Any other local updates RE/ Collective Worship in Wokingham schools (including updates relating to the syllabus)
- Member presentations about their faith or worldview/ about collective worship at their school
- AOB
- Dates of next meetings

2. Autumn meetings:

- Election of Chair and Vice-Chair
- Draft annual report for previous academic year to be shared
- Wokingham schools Ofsted inspections update

3. Spring meetings:

- Final annual report on previous academic year to be shared
- Draft Development Plan for coming financial year

4. Summer meetings:

- Feedback from NASACRE Conference/AGM

NB **During periods of syllabus review**, meetings will include convening of the Agreed Syllabus Conference (ASC) and discussions of the ASC about the syllabus.